
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

Please note that by law this meeting can be filmed, audio-
recorded, photographed or reported electronically by the use 
of social media by anyone attending.  This does not apply to 
any part of the meeting that is held in private session.  The 
Council will webcast the meeting. 

Please ask for: 
Brad Taylor 

 
* Reporting to Cabinet 

11 August 2021 
 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
 

You are requested to attend a meeting of the WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CABINET PLANNING AND PARKING PANEL to be held on Thursday 19 August 2021 at 
7.30 pm in the Council Chamber, Council Offices, The Campus, Welwyn Garden City, 
Herts, AL8 6AE. 
 

 
 
Yours faithfully 

 
Corporate Director 
Public Protection, Planning and Governance 
 
 

A G E N D A 
PART 1 

 

1.   SUBSTITUTIONS  
 

 To note any substitution of Panel Members in accordance with Council Procedure 
Rules. 
 

2.   APOLOGIES  
 

3.   MINUTES  
 

 To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 24 June 2021 
(previously circulated).  
 

4.   NOTIFICATION OR URGENT BUSINESS TO BE CONSIDERED UNDER ITEM 8  
 

5.   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS BY MEMBERS  
 

Public Document Pack



 To note declarations of Members’ disclosable pecuniary interests, non-disclosable 
pecuniary interests and non-pecuniary interests in respect of items on this Agenda. 
 

6.   PUBLIC QUESTION TIME AND PETITIONS  
 

 Up to thirty minutes will be made available for questions from members of the 
public on issues relating to the work of the Committee and to receive any petitions. 

7.   RESPONSE TO ENFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL - NEW LOCAL PLAN 
CONSULTATION (Pages 5 - 12) 
 

 Report of the Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance) on 
setting out Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council’s proposed response to a recent 
consultation launched by Enfield Council who are seeking to update their adopted 
Local Plan. The New Enfield Local Plan 2019 - 2039 (ELP) will guide future spatial 
development up to 2039, and beyond.  

8.   SUCH OTHER BUSINESS AS, IN THE OPINION OF THE CHAIRMAN, IS OF 
SUFFICIENT URGENCY TO WARRANT IMMEDIATE CONSIDERATION  

9.   EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 The Panel is asked to resolve: 

 
That under Section 100(A)(2) and (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press 
and public be now excluded from the meeting for item 10 (if any) on the grounds 
that it involves the likely disclosure of confidential or exempt information as defined 
in Section 100A(3) and Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the said Act (as amended).  
 
In resolving to exclude the public in respect of the exempt information, it is 
considered that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the 
public interest in disclosing the information.  
 

PART II 
 

10.   ANY OTHER BUSINESS OF A CONFIDENTIAL OR EXEMPT NATURE AT THE 
DISCRETION OF THE CHAIRMAN  
 

 
Circulation: Councillors S.Kasumu (Chairman) 

S.Boulton (Vice-Chairman) 
G.Hayes 
A.Hellyer 
S.McNamara 
G.Michaelides 
R.Platt 
 

J.Quinton 
D.Richardson 
A Rohale 
P.Shah 
C.Stanbury 
S.Thusu 
 

 Co-opted Members:- 
Tenants’ Panel Representatives 
Ardita McHugh 

 

 Corporate Management Team 
Press and Public (except Part II Items) 

 
If you require any further information about this Agenda please contact Brad Taylor, 
Governance Services on 01707 357349 or email – democracy@welhat.gov.uk  

mailto:democracy@welhat.gov.uk


- 1 - 

Part I 
Main author: Hayden Kreetzer 
Executive Member: Cllr Stephen 
Boulton 
All Wards 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CABINET PLANNING AND PARKING PANEL – 19 AUGUST 2021 
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING 
AND GOVERNANCE) 

RESPONSE TO ENFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL – NEW LOCAL PLAN 
CONSULTATION 

1 Executive Summary 

1.1 Enfield Council is in the process of updating its adopted Local Plan. The New 
Enfield Local Plan (ELP) is an important document that will guide the future 
spatial development of Enfield Borough up to 2039, and beyond. 

1.2 The Draft Local Plan was approved for consultation on 9 June 2021 and Enfield 
are now consulting on the next stage, a Regulation 18 Draft Plan. 

1.3 The ELP: 2019-2039 will provide a single planning policy document for the 
borough and a new vision for how Enfield will spatially develop to 2039 and 
beyond. 

1.4 Provision will be made for at least 25,000 new homes up to 2039 with a large 
proportion of the Borough’s future development needs provided by the four main 
place-making areas of Meridian Water, Southbury, Crews Hill and Chase Park. 

1.5 Consultation on the Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) accompanying the 
Regulation 18: Enfield Local Plan Main Issues and Preferred Approaches is also 
running at the same time. 

1.6 The IIA comprises Sustainability Appraisal (SA) incorporating Strategic 
Environmental Assessment (SEA), Health Impact Assessment (HIA), Equalities 
Impact Assessment (EqIA), Community Safety Impact Assessment (CSIA) and 
Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA). 

1.7 The Consultation is open from 21st June to 13th September. 

2 Recommendation(s) 

2.1 That the Cabinet Planning and Parking Panel agree the consultation response 
provided in Appendix A. 

  

Page 3

Agenda Item 7



- 2 - 

3 Explanation 

3.1 Enfield Council is in the process of updating its adopted Local Plan. The New 
Enfield Local Plan 2019 - 2039 (ELP) will guide the future spatial development of 
up to 2039, and beyond. 

3.2 The plan has been prepared in light of the New London Plan which was adopted 
in March 2021. The London Plan is legally part of each of London’s Local 
Planning Authorities’ Development Plan and is taken into account when planning 
decisions are taken in any part of Greater London. All Development Plan 
Documents and Neighbourhood Plans within Greater London have to be ‘in 
general conformity’ with the London Plan. 

3.3 The ELP was approved for consultation on 9 June 2021 and are now consulting 
on the next stage, a Regulation 18 Draft Plan.  Preparation of the ELP began in 
2015 and has been through the following stages: 

a) Preliminary consultation on the Local Plan - 2015 

b) Regulation 18 Issues and Options consultation - 2018 

3.4 This draft plan is a further Regulation 18 consultation document. It represents an 
advancement on the 2018/2019 Issues and Options consultation, in that it 
identifies a preferred level of growth and sets out a preferred spatial strategy and 
related policies for accommodating this growth. 

3.5 The next stage of the Local Plan following this consultation is the Publication  
of proposed submission plan (Regulation 19), timetabled for summer 2022. 

Areas of concern  

3.6 The ELP overarching spatial strategy is to provide for sustainable growth with 
supporting infrastructure whilst facilitating nature recovery and improvements to 
green and blue spaces and access to them. Also, that provision will be made for 
at least 25,000 new homes up to 2039 with a large proportion of the Borough’s 
future development needs provided by the four main placemaking areas of 
Meridian Water, Southbury, Crews Hill and Chase Park. 

3.7 The Spatial Strategy seeks to provide for 25,000 new homes to 2039.  This target 
is comprised of the London Plan requirement of 1,246 homes per year up to 
2029 and the target rolled forward to 2039 (equating to 24,920 in the plan 
period). The rolling forward accounts for a third (10 years) of the 15-year plan 
period, assuming a 2024 adoption.  There is a concern that rolling forward the 
London Plan requirement will result in an undersupply of housing as this target is 
below Enfield’s requirement set out in the government’s Standard Methodology.   

3.8 Any undersupply would result in an increase in London’s growing backlog of 
unmet housing need.  It would also drive increased levels of out-migration to 
surrounding areas.  Migration is already a large component of Welwyn Hatfield’s 
Full Objectively Assessed Housing Need (FOAHN).  As such a lack of supply in 
the capital will place greater pressure on Welwyn Hatfield as households seek to 
meet their accommodation needs outside of London.  

3.9 A higher High Growth Option (Option 3) was considered but not selected for 
inclusion in the ELP.  This Spatial Strategy sought to accommodate c.55,000 

Page 4



- 3 - 

homes and was based on the target from the adopted London Plan until 2029 
and then using the government’s Standard Method of need calculation as a 
housing target beyond this until the end of the draft ELP plan period. The 
Housing Topic Paper states that this would address the objectively assessed 
housing need figure derived from the government’s most recent Standard 
Method.  The Council considers the Spatial Strategy should reflect the Enfield 
housing requirement in full.  

3.10 The ELP includes significant development at Crews Hill with development within 
the Green Belt extending north to the M25 and administrative border of Welwyn 
Hatfield. The proposal is for 3,000 homes with associated community and social 
infrastructure and enhanced open space. The Policy for the area refers to a 
comprehensive masterplan (in the form of an SPD), and that development must 
be brought forward in accordance with a planned and coordinated approach for 
this area as set out in adopted and emerging SPDs.   

3.11 The ELP is supported by the Draft Infrastructure Delivery Plan (IDP), this 
document provides a schedule of required infrastructure to support the preferred 
growth scenario. The most notable provisions are: 

a) The new station at Enfield Chase / Crews Hill 

b) Increase the frequency of train services to at least 4 an hour at all times 

c) Restraint measures to limit general traffic growth & discourage car trips 

3.12 The IDP states that there will be further transport modelling and identification of 
mitigation measures will take place at the next stage of the plan. 

3.13 It is proposed that our response should seek to ensure that the impacts of 
different growth locations and the mitigation measures assess the impacts on 
Hertfordshire’s road networks as well as Enfield’s and that there is appropriate 
engagement with the relevant authorities, in particular the County Council. 

3.14 Development at Crews Hill will significantly reduce the Green Belt gap between 
Crews Hill and Cuffley.  This gap is currently approximately 3.5km and if 
development was to extend north towards the M25 this gap is estimated to be 
reduced to 1.1km.   

3.15 The proposed allocation SA27 Land at Crews Hill shows a ‘place making’ area 
extending up to the M25 and borough boundary.  An indicative location for 
housing-led development is shown within the place making area. Two parcels of 
housing-led development are proposed on either side of the railway line, close to 
the borough boundary.   

3.16 The Enfield Green Belt and Metropolitan Open Land Assessment (June 2021) 
identifies the release of Green Belt land, adjoining the borough boundary, and 
within SA27 Land at Crews Hill as resulting in Very High and High Harm.  
Exceptional circumstances will be need to be demonstrated to justify not only the 
release of land from the Green Belt but also the choice of sites.  

3.17 It is proposed that this Council’s response should express concern at the 
reduction in the gap between Cuffley and Crews Hill and the consequential 
significant harm to the Green Belt. 

Page 5



- 4 - 

3.18 Northaw and Cuffley Parish Council have expressed concerns over the 
development of Crews Hill, specifically the pressure on infrastructure and 
whether it would be sustainable. 

3.19 Consultation on the Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) accompanying the 
Regulation 18: Enfield Local Plan Main Issues and Preferred Approaches is also 
running at the same time. 

3.20 The IIA comprises Sustainability Appraisal (SA) incorporating Strategic 
Environmental Assessment (SEA), Health Impact Assessment (HIA), Equalities 
Impact Assessment (EqIA), Community Safety Impact Assessment (CSIA) and 
Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA). 

3.21 Consultation Response 

3.22 A response to the Draft Enfield Local Plan 2021 (Regulation 18) consultation is 
included as Appendix A.  The response highlights the concerns set out above, 
refers to the Parish Council’s concerns around infrastructure and that we are 
expecting HCC to also provide representations.  

3.23 Next Steps 

3.24 Once consultation on this draft plan has finished Enfield Council will consider all 
of the comments received and use them to help inform its decision making on the 
next stage of the plan preparation process. This is likely to be the preparation of 
the final draft plan that will eventually be submitted to the Secretary of State for 
independent examination.  

Implications 

4 Legal Implication(s) 
 
4.1 There are no direct legal implications associated with this report. However, it 

should be noted that the Duty to Cooperate is a legal requirement, which is taken 
into account in the examination of Local Plans. Public bodies have a duty under 
the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, as amended by the Localism 
Act 2011, to cooperate on the preparation of planning documents so far as they 
relate to a strategic matter (the Duty to Cooperate). Strategic matters are defined 
as those that would have a significant impact on at least two planning areas.  
 

4.2 Local planning authorities that are unwilling to cooperate and unable to provide 
robust evidence to support a strategy that does not plan for the unmet 
requirements of another local planning authority may fail the test of compliance 
with the Duty to Cooperate or their plan may be found unsound. 

4.3 A Duty to Cooperate Compliance Statement will accompany the next version of 
the Enfield Local Plan and will be updated before it is submitted to the Secretary 
of State with the Local Plan alongside other supporting documents. 

5 Financial Implication(s) 

5.1 There are no financial implications arising directly in relation to this report. 

6 Risk Management Implications 

Page 6

http://planningguidance.planningportal.gov.uk/blog/guidance/duty-to-cooperate/what-is-the-duty-to-cooperate-and-what-does-it-require/#paragraph_021


- 5 - 

6.1 There are no risk management implications arising directly in relation to this 
report. Responding to neighbouring Authorities consultations ensures that 
potential areas of concern, which could have both direct and indirect implications 
for Welwyn Hatfield, are identified and highlighted as appropriate.  

7 Security and Terrorism Implication(s) 

7.1 There are no security and terrorism implications arising directly in relation to this 
report. 

8 Procurement Implication(s) 

8.1 There are no procurement implications arising directly in relation to this report.  

9 Climate Change Implication(s) 

9.1 No climate change implications have been identified resulting from this report. 
Although clearly proposals for more development will have an impact on climate 
change and will need to be assessed as part of the sustainability appraisal process 
accompanying the preparation of the Enfield Local Plan. 

10 Human Resources Implication(s) 

10.1 There are no Human Resources implications arising directly in relation to this 
report.  

11 Health and Wellbeing Implication(s) 

11.1 There are no specific health and wellbeing implications associated with this 
report.  The Enfield Plan relates to its administrative area and contains policies 
on health and wellbeing. 
 

12 Communication and Engagement Implication(s) 
 
12.1 There are no communication and engagement issues associated with this report. 

 
13 Link to Corporate Priorities 

 
13.1 The subject of this report is linked to the Council’s Business Plan 2018-21 and, in 

particular, Priority 3 Our Housing - to plan for current and future needs and 
Priority 4 Our Economy – sustainable growth. Responding to other authorities’ 
consultations helps this Council to meet these priorities effectively. 
 

14 Equality and Diversity 
 
14.1 An Equalities Impact Assessment (EqIA) was not completed because this report 

does not propose changes to existing service-related policies or the development 
of new service-related policies. 

 
 
 
Hayden Kreetzer  Matthew Wilson 
Planning Officer  Principal Planning Officer 
 
10 August 2021 

Page 7



- 6 - 

 
 
Background papers  

• Draft Enfield Local Plan Consultation: https://letstalk.enfield.gov.uk/localplan

Page 8



- 7 - 

Appendix A: Draft Enfield Local Plan consultation response 
 
 
Dear 
 
Enfield Local Plan consultation - Draft Enfield Local Plan 2019-2039 

Thank you for informing us of your Councils consultation on the Draft Enfield Local Plan 2021 (Regulation 
18) and inviting our views.  Also, for informing us of the Adoption of Enfield’s Blue and Green Strategy. 
 
Enfield Borough is one of six administrative areas that border Welwyn Hatfield and the two settlements of 
Northaw and Cuffley are close to our shared border.  Northaw is identified in our Local Plan as Green Belt 
Village set in open countryside and washed over by (within) the Green Belt and Cuffley is a large 
excluded settlement (not in) the Green Belt.   
 
We note the overarching spatial strategy is to provide for sustainable growth with supporting infrastructure 
across the borough whilst facilitating nature recovery and improvements to green and blue spaces and 
access to them. Also, that provision will be made for at least 25,000 new homes up to 2039 with a large 
proportion of the Borough’s future development needs provided by the four main placemaking areas of 
Meridian Water, Southbury, Crews Hill and Chase Park. 
 
We have concerns relating to the Spatial Strategy and the proposals at Crews Hill.  These are set out 
below. 
 
Spatial Strategy 
 
The Spatial Strategy seeks to provide for 25,000 new homes to 2039.  This target is comprised of the 
London Plan requirement of 1,246 homes per year up to 2029 and the target rolled forward to 2039 
(equating to 24,920 in the plan period). The rolling forward accounts for a third (10 years) of the 15-year 
plan period, assuming a 2024 adoption.  The Council is concerned that rolling forward the London Plan 
requirement will result in an undersupply.   
 
Any undersupply would result in an increase in London’s growing backlog of unmet housing need.  It 
would also drive increased levels of out-migration to surrounding areas.  Migration is already a large 
component of Welwyn Hatfield’s Full Objectively Assessed Housing Need (FOAHN).  As such a lack of 
supply in the capital will place greater pressure on areas such as Welwyn Hatfield that form part of the 
wider regional housing market focussed on the capital, as households seek to meet their accommodation 
needs outside of London. Welwyn Hatfield is already having to release substantial areas of land from the 
Green Belt to meet the need for housing arising in part from current levels of out migration from London. 
 
It is noted that a High Growth Option (Option 3) accommodating c.55,000 homes based on the target 
based on adopting the London Plan target until 2029 and then using the government’s Standard Method 
of need calculation as a housing target beyond this until the end of the draft ELP plan period. The 
Housing Topic Paper states that this would address the objectively assessed housing need figure derived 
from the government’s most recent Standard Method.  The Council considers the Spatial Strategy should 
reflect the Enfield housing requirement in full and is unlikely to be sound if it does not.  
 
Strategic Policy PL9 – Crews Hill  
 
We understand the ELP proposes 3,000 homes with associated community and social infrastructure and 
enhanced open space for Crews Hill.  The Policy for the area refers to a comprehensive masterplan (in 
the form of an SPD), and that development must be brought forward in accordance with a planned and 
coordinated approach for this area as set out in adopted and emerging SPDs.   
 
We support the masterplanned approach but have concerns regarding the proximity of this proposed 
development with the settlement of Cuffley.  The proposal at Crews Hill is the closest of the strategic 
developments to Welwyn Hatfield, specifically the Parish of Northaw and Cuffley.  The current gap 
between the settlements is approximately 3.5km and the strategy diagram indicates the gap would be 
reduced to 1.1km.   
 
The proposed allocation SA27 Land at Crews Hill (ELP page 356) shows a ‘place making’ area extending 
up to the M25 and the Welwyn Hatfield borough boundary.  An indicative location for housing-led 
development is shown within the place making area.  The Enfield Green Belt and Metropolitan Open Land 
(June 2021) identifies that to facilitate the development at Crews Hill requires release of land resulting in  
High and Very High Harm to the Green Belt.   

Page 9



- 8 - 

  
Enfield Borough Council will need to demonstrate exceptional circumstances for the release of this site 
from the Green Belt and demonstrate that the harm that would arise to the Green Belt from its loss has 
been minimised. This Council has serious concerns on the level of harm that will result to the Green Belt 
as a consequence of this allocation. 
 
We note the Draft Infrastructure Delivery Plan that provides a schedule of required infrastructure to 
support the preferred growth scenario and that further transport modelling and identification of mitigation 
measures will take place at the next stage of the plan. We support further modelling and consider that LB 
Enfield will need to engage with the relevant Hertfordshire planning and highway authorities under the 
Duty to Cooperated to understand the infrastructure implications arising from your proposals and to 
ensure they are appropriately mitigated. 
 
Northaw and Cuffley Parish Council are in the process of preparing a Neighbourhood Plan and have 
raised significant concerns relating to the potential impact of growth on infrastructure within the Parish. 
  
As you may be aware, the Welwyn Hatfield Draft Local Plan was submitted to the Secretary of State in 
2016 and the examination remains ongoing.  Stage 9 hearing sessions concluded in March 2021 and the 
Council received the Inspectors feedback in July.  The Council is reviewing the Inspector’s findings and 
observations ahead of a full Council decision on the next stages over the next few months. Subject to 
Council approval, public consultation on the proposed Main Modifications is envisaged to take place later 
this year.  
 
The Council notes the draft Enfield Local Plan and requests that we are kept informed as the plan 
progresses. Welwyn Hatfield continues to be willing to constructively engage with Enfield Council as part 
of the duty to cooperate arrangements for both the Welwyn Hatfield and Enfield Local Plan respectively. 
 
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 10


	Agenda
	7 RESPONSE TO ENFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL - NEW LOCAL PLAN CONSULTATION

